MINUTES OF MEETING DOUBLE BRANCH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Double Branch Community Development District was held Monday, February 13, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Cindy NelsenChairpersonTom HortonSupervisorScott ThomasSupervisorAndre LanierSupervisor

Also present were:

Marilee Giles District Manager Mike Eckert District Counsel

Jay Soriano Field Operations Manager

Chalon Suchsland VerdeGo

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS

Roll Call

Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS

Audience Comments

There being no comments, the next item followed.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS

Approval of Consent Agenda

- A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 12, 2022 Meeting
- **B.** Financial Statements
- C. Assessment Receipt Schedule
- D. Check Register

Ms. Giles stated included in your agenda package are the minutes of the December 12th meeting, followed by the financial statements, your assessment receipts schedule showing the assessments are 92% collected, and the check register totaling \$62,293.04.

On MOTION by Mr. Horton seconded by Mr. Thomas with all in favor the consent agenda was approved.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

Public Hearing for the Purpose of Adopting Revised Suspension and Termination Rules; Consideration of Resolution 2023-04

Mr. Eckert stated you've seen these documents before, but the process we will go through is we will do a motion to open the public hearing, we will take any public comment on the revised suspension rules, we will close the public hearing by motion, then the Board will have discussion and assuming the Board is supportive of the changes, we would then have a motion to approve resolution 2023-04.

On MOTION by Mr. Thomas seconded by Chairperson Nelsen with all in favor, the public hearing was opened.

Mr. Horton stated in the agenda you have the policy in there, but the revision date on there is June 2021, I assume that will be changed?

Mr. Eckert responded yes, that was just a redlined version, so once we incorporate that and accept the changes, we will update it to today's date.

There being no public comment, a motion was made to close the public hearing.

On MOTION by Chairperson Nelsen seconded by Mr. Thomas with all in favor, the public hearing was closed.

Mr. Eckert stated we've talked about this the last couple of meetings. We would be looking for a motion to approve resolution 2023-04 unless the Board has additional conversations they'd like to have.

On MOTION by Mr. Lanier seconded by Mr. Horton with all in favor, Resolution 2023-04, adopting revised suspension and termination rules was approved.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of a Tort Claim by AT&T

Mr. Soriano stated this is an argument from AT&T. We were digging and building a fence line and we hit a fiber optic line and damaged it. We did have the area marked out and it was not marked at all. They did ask us originally about a year ago and it was much higher, a

little closer to \$8,000 to \$10,000 for this fiber optic there. I think what they do is they send out a form letter for repairs, so broken down on there were things like heavy equipment. There was no heavy equipment, we did all the digging. All they did was come in and fuse the line after that, so it was about an hour's worth of work. They have resubmitted this to their claims department and it is much lower now, a couple thousand dollars. Luckily it was not an unmarked electric line or anything like that, that could have been dangerous. We have a couple of options. We can continue to fight them and maybe get them to lower it more. If they hand it to the fence company, that is a vendor that works for us, and they should have insurance. It is a small mom and pop company, but he has worked for us now for around 18 years, but he should still have business insurance because those things happen. We are at the point now that they are bugging us and our lawyers to demand what we're going to do to make it right. We're coming to you for direction on what you would like us to do.

Chairperson Nelsen asked what was their offer?

Mr. Eckert responded \$2,873.63.

Chairperson Nelsen asked we haven't talked to them about negotiating anything yet?

Mr. Eckert responded no, we wanted to bring it to the Board so that you were aware of it and give staff direction for how you'd like us to proceed.

Mr. Lanier asked in other communities that you guys have represented and something like this happened where they go through the proper channels to see if there is anything there and it comes back as negative, but a company has equipment there, what has happened?

Mr. Eckert responded the argument you would make is that you weren't negligent because you undertook the process of having the area marked by an independent third party prior to the time that the work was done and that is what a reasonably prudent person would do and that would be your defense to the negligence action. They would probably also argue that regardless of that, you damaged our property and then we incur damages as a result of that and why isn't your fence company the one taking care of this, not dealing with you. It's messy, but whether somebody files a suit over \$2,800, I don't know the answer to that. In situations where we've not marked and we've damaged something, those districts have just paid it and understood that is a cost of doing business. The only thing that is different here is a third party came in and marked it and either missed it, or it's buried too deep. I don't know the answer as

to why the markings didn't come up, but I don't think you're going to have any luck pursuing the marking company.

- Mr. Horton stated I might suggest just pay it and get it over with.
- Mr. Lanier asked would we spend more on legal fees than what the offer is?

Mr. Eckert responded I'm not suggesting I'd be involved at all, except to the extent that if you pay anything, you ought to make sure you get a complete release so that they don't come back for another \$7,000 later.

Mr. Soriano stated I'm usually not quick to say let's just pay it, especially when I want to make the argument that we did our part, but we can always see if they will adjust it even more. I don't even know that this claims guy knows that somebody talked to me last year and I gave him all the pictures of the markings and things like that. They did send a locate company back out to locate it and it was located correctly afterwards, we even witnessed them coming out, so I gave all that information to them.

- Mr. Horton asked is that a separate company, the ones that marked it?
- Mr. Soriano responded right. They came back out afterward.
- Mr. Horton asked they're the ones that are responsible for it, right?

Mr. Soriano stated that's our argument. That's done by the State. It's a free service. I don't know how that works and the legality of it, but I make that argument. I would start off haggling with them and if you're fine with it, I can do that to see if we can get a lower rate and at that point if you wanted to speak to T Fenceman we could see if they would split that portion. We've used them for other things around the neighborhood, I just don't know that right away jumping on let's go ahead and pay them to get them off our back is the way to go, but it's up to the Board in what direction you want to send me in. I will work with Mike at the end to make sure we have everything in order.

- Mr. Horton asked have you dealt with AT&T before?
- Mr. Soriano responded yes, and it did not ever go our way. They are usually the subcontractors digging up our right of way. Although it is county right of way, we maintain it. They're usually the ones tearing irrigation lines up or Clay Electric lines and are usually not that helpful in the end.

Mr. Horton stated the reason I ask is when you read there it says you have 30 days to dispute it and we're way beyond that because the bill is from November.

Mr. Soriano stated that's always going to be on there because the first contact I had was last year, so about a year after the incident.

Chairperson Nelsen stated I'm okay with you trying to negotiate.

Mr. Thomas stated so the recommendation would be for Jay to continue down this road and see if we can't barter a little better and if there's an agreement reached, make sure it is iron clad that they can't come back for the rest of the \$7,000.

A resident stated to me the District has no dog in this fight. That's between the contractor and AT&T. Why are we spending big money for something the contractor is responsible for? It's his responsibility to locate it and verify those lines.

Mr. Thomas stated I think because it happened two years ago, it would be very hard to prove. I don't personally want to get into legal costs.

Mr. Soriano stated there are times it may be clearly in our favor, but it still may cost us \$2,800. I'll work to get what I can. At \$2,800 we're above my limit, so I'll work to get whatever dollars I can and if I have to, I can always ratify the \$2,800 if you're agreeable to that so we can move along.

Mr. Lanier stated I understand where you're coming from, but a lot of times with legalities, it goes to the deeper pockets and it doesn't matter whether the fence company folds tomorrow, it's still going to cost us. They're going to go after whatever party they can to suck funds out of.

A resident stated do we not have a contract with the fence contractor? That should spell out everything.

Mr. Soriano stated we don't have one with them. We do have written contracts for larger projects with them, but not this one. This was a small project.

Mr. Eckert asked do you need a motion to approve since it's above your threshold?

Mr. Soriano responded let's say they don't budge at all, and I don't get anything out of T Fenceman, we can push it out and I'll see you again next month, but if you want me to go ahead and take care of it, I'll do that. If I can get half and then T Fenceman splits half with us, that's what I would look at.

Mr. Lanier stated that's what my recommendation would be, to just see what we can get it down to.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business

There being no other business, the next item followed.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

A. District Counsel

Mr. Eckert stated the mandatory training for CDD board members is back in legislature again, as well as sovereign immunity limits, so we will keep an eye on those bills as they go through.

Mr. Thomas asked so there's nothing new in Tallahassee right now?

Mr. Eckert responded no, just those items. I think you all should be getting the memo that goes out in terms of some other things, but those are the two main ones. I don't think we're going to get wrapped up in the special session dealing with Reedy Creek and Disney. Only about 5-10% of the bills that are proposed get adopted.

B. District Engineer – Consideration of Work Authorization for Hourly Rate Increase

Ms. Giles stated I asked Peter for some background so I could present this on his behalf in order to save the District some money. It's a work authorization. ETM has not raised their rates since 2010 and back then, he was billed out as a Principal Project Manager and now he is billed out as the Executive Vice President, but that difference is from \$195 per hour to \$335 per hour, so over 13 years, it's a 5% annual increase. I did check this against the budget. The Fiscal Year 2023 budget is at \$5,000, so this exceeds what is in the budget, but because Jay and I can take care of some engineering business as it comes up, we've not billed at all this fiscal year for any engineering consulting services, and I don't anticipate having to do that for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Mr. Horton asked you're talking about FY23, right? Because he did do something for us last year.

Ms. Giles responded he did the stormwater analysis, and he gave me a note on that as what he billed it out as.

On MOTION by Mr. Horton seconded by Chairperson Nelsen with all in favor, the work authorization from England-Thims & Miller for hourly rates increases was approved.

B. District Manager

Ms. Giles stated just as a reminder, we will approve the budget for Fiscal Year 2024 at our June 12, 2023 meeting, and we will adopt the budget at our August 14, 2023 meeting. We will keep this is as a discussion item on the agenda so we can seek the Board's guidance for any updates or changes or anything you want to see in that budget.

D. Operations Manager - Memorandum

Mr. Soriano stated we just had a community event, the Polar Plunge. It worked out well. We had a nice, cold morning. There were about 70 registered, but we only had about 45 jump in altogether. Everybody had fun. This will be the 20th summer since the facility opened. We had one year the pool was closed because we were working on the drains, and of course we didn't do the event during the pandemic, so there were those couple years, but this is our longest running community event. I wanted to go over the tentative event calendar. It's the same general event planning we've had for the last few years, including food truck night, spring break at the pools, our virtual runs, our dive-in movies that follow the same monthly patterns, and some months you have a couple of events. Unless anyone has any objections or has an event you'd like to add in, this is what I will put on the website for the upcoming year. We usually post three months' worth of events at a time in case anything changes.

I wanted to go over the pool hours. The heated pool at your sister district will open March 1st. That is what they have gone to over the last couple of years. They've turned those heaters way down for January and February and then it opens back up in March. We heat for that last month and then by April we're open every weekend, and we open up for Spring Break. In April we bring on lifeguards for the weekends, so we turn the heater off. We have the same lifeguarding schedule we've seen for the last six or seven years. I've made one adjustment to it. I looked around at other facilities that have slides and waterpark-style pools like ours and looked at their hours for guarding and for slides. We are still the highest number of operating hours, but then we have the largest population and the biggest pools, so I tried to take that into account, but I did cut back some slide hours. During the week, the slide doesn't open until 12:00 p.m. Because of our regulations with the health department that say we have to have two

lifeguards for operation of the slide, it increases our staff levels, so this is a way for us to cut back on staffing for what amounts to well over 100 hours for the summer. We would typically open at 10:00, so it's only two hours for them to wait if they're coming Monday through Friday. Saturday and Sunday it's still the same. Outside of that, everything else is the same. We started quite a few years ago on that alternating day on and day off when kids are in school and that's what we're planning again for the beginning of spring and it's the same thing when they go back to school. We have that alternating schedule all the way until Friday. There will always be a facility open for the families, and then of course our adults can swim at any time. Unless there are any objections, that schedule is what will get posted on the website after this meeting.

Chairperson Nelsen stated April 7th there is no school for Good Friday.

Mr. Soriano stated in the last couple of years we didn't do special dates for those days off school. There are sometimes where the elementary kids are out, but the older kids are not. Generally, what I've looked at the last two years is whether Susie can provide a pool monitor at least and then we can open the pool for that day and not provide the lifeguards, so that means the slide may not be open, but they can at least come to the pool. If we want to do that, I will get with Susie.

Chairperson Nelsen asked and then we can push it out by email?

Mr. Soriano responded yes. So, those would be added. We can keep that in the calendar just in case.

Mr. Soriano continued with his report stating, I wanted to go through some open items. We have one company that has surfacing material for the pickleball court, it's called Plexipave and it is ready to go, so I am going to go that route. That is not the surfacing material I wanted. I told you guys about Sports Master before, that is the actual design for pickleball courts. It uses a rubber aggregate instead of a sand aggregate. It still gives you a grip, but it's not as tough on the pickleball and not as tough on the joints because it's softer and that is still on hold, so if we want to get moving, I'm going to go with the Plexipave, which is more of a tennis court style aggregate. We do have some good information to report and that is going to be on some bonds. We had a construction bond left over and I thank Mike for working on that and clearing everything up for us. Now we get to use that for some construction funds. It was

related to the finishing up of the fitness center. If you look in the packet, you can find it on page 26.

Ms. Giles stated it's \$18,816.

Mr. Soriano stated the surfacing material won't quite hit that, I want to say it was \$16,000 in supplies, but Mike did say I have a small percentage I can use toward something else, correct?

Mr. Eckert responded the entire amount can be put towards the construction that you need to do related to the amenities.

Mr. Soriano stated so we will use that amount.

Mr. Eckert stated what you will see is after that amount is spent down, we will come back to the Board with a project completion resolution, which will declare that project complete. That is the last remaining issue we need to deal with.

Mr. Soriano stated the next couple of items I have in your packet, these are the playground equipment quotes. Our last meeting, we had a resident from Oakbrook come by and ask about installing something in their green space area. Right now, we have a gazebo and benches, but no playground. We asked to look at a swing set, so not a playground structure. This is a small area with only a few homes, but they are a little farther set out from some of our closest playgrounds. I brought you a quote for just the purchase of the swing set from BYO. This is a company we have worked with before out of St. Augustine. They're pretty quick on turnaround for smaller items like this. They're asking for \$4,294.63 for a two-bay swing set, which gets us four seats; two regular seats and two toddler seats, unless we want to just go with a single-bay which just has two swings. That was the cheapest I could find that was readily available. This is just the purchase of the swing set. This does not include install and we would have to do surfacing material, which would add a couple thousand for things like mulch and a plastic border out there.

Mr. Horton stated I would think just a one bay with two swings would be sufficient. The park down by me is not used that much and there is a lot of people.

Ms. Suchsland asked which Oakbrook is this?

Mr. Soriano responded this is the very front. It's only about \$900 less for the single bay, so it wasn't a huge difference. Maintenance wise it will be. Those bucket seats for the toddlers are very expensive and we do replace those every couple of years.

- Mr. Horton asked the single wouldn't have the bucket seats?
- Mr. Soriano responded you would have to decide what you want there.

Mr. Thomas stated so with mulch, labor and everything we're still looking at \$5,000 for just a single.

Mr. Soriano stated probably right about there. With install, for the guys putting up the bay is not hard. It's concrete work. It's going to be digging up and putting borders and mulch. Mulch right now per square foot is around \$0.60. We're going to spend a couple thousand just to put mulch around the single bay even.

Mr. Lanier asked does it make any difference using mulch versus the rubber?

Mr. Soriano responded yes expense wise. We are allowed to have less of a depth, so depending on what material you have there are different depths. Mulch is expected to be between 12 and 16-inches, so we are supposed to go out there and constantly replenish, which they do every year. The rubber can be less, it's just going to be more expensive.

Mr. Lanier asked would this be coming out of our capital funds?

Mr. Soriano responded yes.

Mr. Lanier stated it's a community that's been back there for quite a while and they do have a nice green space, but they don't have much. I'd like to make a motion to get this moving forward with a dual swing, so they have the opportunity to have two toddlers as once as well as two younger kids.

Mr. Horton stated the price difference is not that much.

Mr. Thomas asked so you're talking closer to \$8,000 total?

Mr. Soriano responded yes. I will do installs with my amount. My only concern would be if the mulch comes out to be more than \$2,500. I can't imagine because it's going to be small. It might be \$2,000, so I can do everything on my own outside of the purchase of the swing set.

Mr. Lanier asked does this include shipping?

Mr. Soriano responded no it does not. There is no tax.

Chairperson Nelsen stated it says free shipping.

Mr. Soriano stated the tax is going to come off, so it's actually \$3,995 for just the purchase of the swings.

Mr. Lanier asked and you're going to do two toddler and two buckets?

Mr. Soriano responded yes.

On MOTION by Mr. Lanier seconded by Chairperson Nelsen with all in favor purchasing a swing set for Oakbrook at an amount not to exceed \$4,000 was approved.

Mr. Soriano stated the next item is a playground item also. Our structures are in their 19th or 20th years. We did a couple of years ago start working on replacing them one at a time and we have now replaced three altogether. We did vote on doing another one last year. I haven't received that one, and the biggest problem is the design. We specifically picked out one that we wanted, Ellie the Elephant and it was a five-inch post and that was what slowed it down. All of ours are 4 and 3.5-inch posts, so it is a much bigger unit and much more durable. Since we are still waiting, this is a new year, we can get another one coming to us that is more of a quick ship. I called around to get quotes on things that were actually in stock and that has been very problematic. We have taken out the Cannons Point playground because it was just so bad and we were fixing holes and we were getting emails and complaints that it was just easier to take it down, but we need something to go in its place, so I've given you two quotes for items from two different companies that are quick ship. The Little Dipper, Play Craze, Seize the Day, and Treasure Hunt are the only ones they have ready to go. Treasure Hunt is the bigger one and it is still nowhere near the size of Cannons Point. That one comes in red and yellow. The one behind it is the one that I was looking at. It's more comparable to the size of the one we took down. It's called the Grand Venetian and it's a couple thousand dollars cheaper.

Chairperson Nelsen asked and delivery is about the same?

Mr. Soriano responded yes.

Chairperson Nelsen asked and this is in our reserves, right?

Mr. Soriano responded this would be this year's purchase for the playground.

Mr. Thomas asked so you'll keep this one intact instead of piecing it out like the other one?

Mr. Soriano responded right.

Chairperson Nelsen asked what's the elephant? Was that Silver Leaf?

Mr. Soriano responded we've already done Silver Leaf. The next one would probably be either Worthington Oaks or Fall Creek.

Mr. Horton asked which one do you recommend?

Mr. Soriano responded I would say we could approve a not to exceed for Grand Venetian first and if for some reason there was a problem, that I could jump on Treasure Hunt, because it is an issue with the fact that it's empty. We took it down last week and I already started getting emails asking what is going in its place and when it's going up.

Chairperson Nelsen motion to approve purchasing the Grand Venetian at an amount not to exceed \$21,000.

Mr. Horton asked does that include shipping?

Mr. Soriano responded it does include shipping, but it does not include the install amount. I would probably ask for a total of about \$8,000. That is to update the mulch and the border there and the labor time. That is our guys doing the work.

Chairperson Nelsen amended her motion to approve the Grand Venetian at an amount not to exceed \$30,000. Mr. Lanier seconded the motion. With all in favor, the motion was approved.

Ms. Suchsland stated Jay, we're doing playground mulch the beginning of March before Spring Break. If you and I can pinpoint the amount that we need to save back, we can get the bulk rate still and hold that side to save you guys money.

Mr. Soriano stated the next thing is fitness center quotes. I was asked to bring some of these forward to help alleviate some of the work that we're throwing on the in-house maintenance crew. This is one they were going to start this week, but if we want to approve somebody else to come in and do the painting, I'm sure they'd be happy to have that off their plate. I did get three vendors to tour with me last week. Armand's did not provide a written proposal in time for the packet, however when they toured with me, they gave me a guesstimate between \$12,000 and \$14,000 to paint that building, which is about what I expected. You can see Tito's at \$8,000. Rhino Shield I put in there so you could see it. Their commercials say never paint your house again and things like that. It does come with a high

warranty, and they do great prep work, but I got them to quote my house last time I painted my house and they are eight to ten times higher than everybody else. So, you go from Tito's at \$8,000 something to Rhino Shield at \$30,000 something.

Mr. Horton asked is it just the back side of the fitness center?

Mr. Soriano responded no; this is all the exterior. Everything except for the brick, and the window and door frames. You have peaks and you do have metal vents on there that will get painted. You have a metal roof that will be updated. You have all the wood, the trim, the fascia and all the soffits on the other side of the first story.

Mr. Thomas asked have you used any of these companies?

Mr. Soriano responded I have not. We were going to start painting this week, but we do have a lot of work to do, however I estimate it at about a week with our full-time guys, even working at a week we would have been somewhere right around \$3,000 to \$4,000, so about half of that, but it takes them out of doing everything else. Even if I were to get lucky and got the swing set in within a week, we're not working on that. I know we get complaints and concerns of things being done in a timely fashion, but we have a lot to do out there, so if we want to wait, we can, and it would be much cheaper. Tito's is not a bad price, and like I said, I'm sure the maintenance guys would be happy to have it off their plates to work on something else.

Mr. Horton stated I've seen Tito's mentioned before so they seem to do a good job.

Mr. Soriano stated they were highly reviewed, and they do work a lot in the area.

Chairperson Nelsen I'm not seeing Sherwin Williams on here.

Mr. Soriano stated he is not a distributor for any one paint; both him and Armand's, but Rhino Shield uses their proprietary paint. Both Armand's and Tito's said they would use whatever we request, it just may change the pricing.

Mr. Horton asked how are they going to take the chipped paint on the backside off?

Mr. Soriano responded they will prep all of it, that's part of it. They sand and scrape. I've talked to both of them. There's one big piece of fascia that is going to have to come off. It's rotten back there. They're going to have to replace that whole thing, so that is part of the prep work.

Chairperson Nelsen stated it is definitely time.

Mr. Soriano stated just a reminder, the reason we were going to start painting on that soon is we're also doing pickleball soon, so when we open that up, I do want it to look nice. When you walk out there and turn around to the back of the building, the back is rough. The front is a little, but it's not as bad.

Mr. Lanier asked do we need a not to exceed? Can we get more durable paint as part of the price?

Mr. Soriano stated he's still using Sherwin Williams. I can see if he can bump that up if we put in an extra \$750 to \$1,000. It's not going to be that big of a difference, but that gives me a little leeway to be able to work with them.

On MOTION by Mr. Horton seconded by Mr. Lanier with all in favor Tito's Painting proposal was approved with an amount not to exceed \$9,500.

Mr. Soriano stated this is not something we typically do, so you'll be reimbursing me for cash. They don't except checks. Typically, the District always likes to do checks if we can.

Mr. Horton asked when will they start?

Mr. Soriano responded I told him we would be discussing it tonight, so hopefully he is excited and ready to go. I told him I would call him tomorrow morning and let him know. I will find out and let you know tomorrow.

Mr. Soriano continued with his report stating, there is old furniture in the clubroom. I'd say it's about 13 or 14 years old. The leather couch is in pretty decent shape and that was the most expensive part. Tom walked with me through that room to check it out and we talked about keeping the leather couch. I originally thought I would get rid of it and do some high tops so there's more seating area, but it's in good shape. It's the other sofa that is just regular upholstery and the two chairs. The green wingback chairs that are in there are in rough shape and they are very old. We're beyond just cleaning them. If we want to match the leather couch, I've brought you options for leather furniture.

Mr. Lanier asked how many chairs are you looking at?

Mr. Soriano responded to match what you have in there, it's the Beamerton Sofa.

Mr. Lanier asked do we need the sofa or the chairs?

Mr. Soriano responded there is one sofa, two large chairs, and two wing-back chairs in there. I originally wanted to replace the leather couch too. Like I said, we could do more room and different things, but then we have to replace a lot more items.

Mr. Lanier asked are we picking up on usage as well?

Mr. Soriano responded we are not. We're still slow compared to three years ago. It's ticked up slightly, but we're not anywhere close to where we used to be.

Chairperson Nelsen asked where was this on the replacement estimate that we have?

Mr. Soriano responded it's past due, but it's not this much money either. He looked at spending just a couple thousand on furniture and it was probably looking at replacing a piece at a time, not altogether. To do it altogether, the sofa is \$1,999 and there are two large chairs that would sit on either side at \$1,599.

Mr. Lanier stated when he came in with his recommendations, how long of a timeframe was it over?

Mr. Soriano responded I'll look it up.

Mr. Thomas asked were you saying two wingbacks as well?

Mr. Soriano responded yes, there are two in there right now that you would get rid of. Your total just to do the five pieces that are in there right now, not the large bay window couch that is in there, if you matched it adds up to be \$7,537.97.

Mr. Thomas asked do we want to stay with that same décor?

Chairperson Nelsen stated we want something durable.

Mr. Lanier stated something that fits the aesthetics of the room.

Mr. Soriano stated this is something that was way above anything I would have looked at. The reason I ended up going with this is if we keep the leather sofa, it will match. The leather has made it, but I'm always worried about it getting torn up. It's done better than our cloth upholstery ones. I can tell you Wanda bugs me a lot for this room. One, we don't charge a lot for the room and since the pandemic we have fallen off quite a bit, but it is hard to argue with people when they tell us the couch is ugly. It's still a lot of money for furniture.

Mr. Thomas asked do you think it would be the same to go to an upholstery company to have it reupholstered?

Mr. Soriano responded it's still going to be costly. Unless you have an expensive couch, I don't know that it's worth it. The wingback chairs are nice chairs, and we could get

those reupholstered, but I don't know that you're going to beat \$1,100 on a brand new leather one.

- Mr. Horton stated leather holds up a lot better than cloth.
- Mr. Lanier asked if we go with leather, do we have a maintenance plan and something we could do internally to be more diligent?
- Mr. Soriano responded right now they use regular leather cleaner, nothing special, but we do treat the leather every once in a while. That is all we've done with that couch.
- Mr. Horton stated if the couch is out in a couple years, we can replace that next. I've looked at it at least twice. Something needs to be done.
- Mr. Soriano stated just to clarify, when I went through it with Tom, before that my idea was to get rid of all the furniture. I was going to do high top table and chairs. It's hard, you're not going to rip up wood easy. We would probably have a lot more of those high tops to open the space up, but you won't have that comfy area. Right now, you have this area that looks like a living room.
- Mr. Horton stated I would suggest we also have monitors for rentals. If the monitors would do a quick inspection to make sure everything is okay.

Chairperson Nelsen stated they do that for night rentals.

- Mr. Soriano stated not during the week. That is for Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays. That's why the rate is so much lower during the week. Security helps out with locking up when they're done, but there's not a party monitor. Also though, during the week we don't get a lot of parties, it's more HOA meetings. Things can still get torn up, but it's not as likely as with a wedding shower or something like that. That's where you saw that price increase a few years ago.
 - Mr. Horton stated I'm sure Wanda wouldn't mind keeping an eye on it.
 - Mr. Soriano stated yes, when she's here.
 - Mr. Lanier asked do any of these prices involve shipping?
- Mr. Soriano responded I think all of these included shipping. The Ashley, I'll have to see. I think it was pre-shipping. The big leather bay window couch that is in there is Ashley furniture. The tables and chairs are also.

Mr. Lanier motioned to approve purchase of furniture for the club room in the amount of \$7,537.97.

Mr. Horton stated I'm wondering if that is a little bit low and if we should bump it up to \$8,000.

Mr. Lanier amended his previous motion to include a not to exceed amount of \$8,000 for purchase of furniture for the clubroom. Mr. Horton seconded the motion.

Mr. Thomas stated I'm on the fence. We're not using it a lot and any time I've seen people have a party there, the furniture gets moved, so I'm leaning more towards the high-top idea. It looks old timey in there. Like I said, every time we've rented it, or other people have rented it, it's been more of a dance area as opposed to you go sit in this living room, and you sit over there. You can't talk to people over there when you're sitting over here, and you're technically not supposed to move the furniture because of the rental agreement.

Mr. Soriano stated if they're not going to use that seating area, the first thing they do is push the couches and chairs out to the walls to open up that area.

Chairperson Nelsen stated when the other couch goes, we could do that area in tables.

Mr. Soriano stated my plan was to get rid of everything. Like I said, I was going to get rid of the bigger couch too. I know it's in good shape, but it is also 13 or 14 years old. It does take up a lot of space, but it is usable. I'd hate to waste it. It was the more expensive item when they bought it years ago. Almost as much as what we're talking about right now, just for that couch.

On voice vote, the motion to approve a not to exceed amount of \$8,000 for purchase of furniture for the clubroom passed 4-1 with Mr. Thomas opposed.

Mr. Soriano stated I have another request that I'm bringing forward. As you guys know, I don't like spending money. I do know a lot of these things need to get done and that we've already planned a lot of this, but I don't typically like this much. Some stuff, especially if it's not a concern for safety, I'm not too worried about it immediately. The last quote is something

we tabled that I brought you guys before. I did get them to update the proposal. This is for your extra lounge chairs at the pool. We are full if it wasn't for adjusting the fencing that was in the front for years, we wouldn't have opened the area up anymore. I could take the furniture and just spread it out, it just looks a little empty right now.

Mr. Horton asked you're requesting 25 chaise lounges?

Mr. Soriano stated I'm looking at putting 12 along that wall, and 8 out by the spray ground. I'm still going to spread them out a little bit, so I did cut that down. Realistically, we don't have to do any of them, I could just spread them out.

Chairperson Nelsen asked but do we get full on weekend?

Mr. Soriano responded we do. Last year we were getting busier than we've been in a long time, but there was a point back in 2018 when we still had to be concerned with overcrowding to where we even put a policy in place for limiting guests, which helped. We got back to that last year, so there are times when we're full. The biggest thing with this is if we do want to add this, it's not a quick turnaround. They take a couple of months sometimes if we want to be able to have it for this summer.

Mr. Horton stated I'm okay with it the way it is.

Mr. Lanier asked what do you think a good lead time is to get these?

Mr. Soriano responded we ordered the year before and generally I do \$10,000-\$20,000 worth of furniture since we started, and it's been about three months. This is a smaller order.

Mr. Lanier stated that's going to put us right at opening.

Mr. Soriano stated yes, I don't expect to have these by spring break. It would be three to four months if it takes the full time they mention.

On MOTION by Mr. Horton seconded by Mr. Lanier with all in favor, purchasing pool furniture at an amount not to exceed \$4,800 was approved.

Mr. Soriano stated unless there are any maintenance items, that is it for me.

Mr. Thomas asked what is our next step for the hogs that are tearing everything up?

Mr. Soriano stated we would have to get a trapper. They're coming out in the middle of the night. So far, I haven't gotten a report, even from a resident that has actually laid eyes on them. They are tearing up other areas, but we haven't seen them. They are building the road

that cuts all the way through from the back of Chimney Lakes, Cheswick, and down to the bottom. That is pushing them into the little neighborhood that sits at the back of Oakleaf Village Parkway and then they'll come out. Until that construction, we haven't seen problems in a while.

Mr. Thomas asked should we have something on our website for hog sightings to be able to tell the trapper where to go? If he was over there by the park and now, he's moved across the pond, but now they're actually in the neighborhood.

Mr. Soriano stated I can send out another email to the residents. My concern was safety. There are a lot of people that live around here that have never seen a feral hog and don't realize how dangerous those things can be, so that was more for information but I could put out there to have people contact me if they do see something so I can relay it to a trapper. Many of these trappers are much better at this than we are, so they are going to be able to tell when they move. But yes, I would have to pay for somebody to come out and trap them.

Mr. Thomas asked is that within your budget?

Mr. Soriano responded yes; it should be. There could be some very big hogs out there and they may come back and say they need more.

Mr. Horton stated one of the discussions Jay and I have had lately was on the ducks in the pool area.

Mr. Soriano stated we talked about it before, and a big complaint was the soccer fields. Those are our resident geese. A lot of our birds are protected in Florida, so you can't do much about it. You can get a ticket for just harassing them. After this last set of complaints on the ducks at the pool, I looked into it and found out the Muscovy are carved out of that law. Muscovy are considered invasive in Florida. You cannot trap them and move them, but you can dispose of them. That would lead us to what we could do. I would look at a nuisance trapper the same way. I have some guys that would have no problem with this. I am not going to ask the RMS guys to kill any animals, so I would go to a paid person and that takes it out of our hands.

Mr. Horton asked did you get any prices?

Mr. Soriano responded not yet. One person from Oakleaf actually contacted me after seeing the Facebook rants, so I'm hoping to get a price for them. Fish and Wildlife gave me a couple of names to try in our area too so I can compare pricing.

Mr. Lanier asked what percentage of our ducks are Muscovy ducks?

Mr. Soriano responded that is 100% of our problem on the pool decks. Outside of the pool decks, we have a lot of geese. We have white Mallards in the ponds on this side, not as many on your side. It's just direction I would need to hear from the Board, because that is not something that is taken well by some residents.

Mr. Horton stated it leaves a nasty mess in there. I think our residents deserve better than that. I'm all for having a trapper come in to get them out of here. It won't be a permanent fix, but those seem to stay there in that area, so hopefully if we remove the ones from the pool area, that will solve the problem. It doesn't seem like trapping them would be hard to do at all.

Mr. Lanier asked so we're giving Jay direction to contact somebody from that world.

Mr. Soriano stated if it's under my amount as long as I have direction this is what we're going to do.

Mr. Thomas asked and you're going to contact the trapper for the hogs?

Mr. Soriano responded yes. If it's the same person, great. If not, I'll have separate trappers.

Mr. Horton stated you mentioned the bulkheads at the duck bridge. There have been some improvements on that. I really like it. It looks nice. If you haven't been out there, you need to go take a look at it. Instead of dropping off, he's got it where it's leveled out and he's putting some plants in there too.

Mr. Soriano stated yes, we are working on adding some landscaping, so we have the extra vinyl posts there too. It does look really improved compared to the drop-off before, and it was actually causing some damage from erosion too so we will be able to repair that now without the ground sinking in around it. We are only half done. We've done two bridges and we have one more to go.

Mr. Horton stated you didn't mention anything about the leak.

Mr. Soriano stated I let you guys know it was a 10-inch pipe, but I was wrong. The large end is a 12-inch, and I don't have a plug for that, so I ordered one, but until it comes in, I can't plug up a 12-inch pipe. It only takes a couple of days to get to me. We can buy a plug for a few hundred bucks, whereas if I rent it, it would be \$100 or so to rent this plug. You are going to use this again in the future. This is the second time we've had a major leak. The third

altogether. This side had a big leak too that we took care of a few years ago, so this is not an item I won't use.

- Mr. Thomas asked where do we stand on the cleanup of the car accident in the front?
- Mr. Soriano responded I've talked to T Fenceman about replacing that panel, so we're just waiting on him. We took care of the tree already last week. I don't know if Clay Electric has come out to take care of the light.
 - Ms. Suchsland stated I don't believe so.
- Mr. Soriano stated there was a light damaged, and as far as the insurance, they haven't contacted me. I think they've left the homeowner hanging also.
- Mr. Thomas asked any word from the cable company that came through and did the number?
 - Mr. Soriano responded no.
 - Mr. Thomas stated I've seen the sidewalk repair guy come out.
- Mr. Soriano stated that was only two slabs, if you notice, the others are still asphalt and it's not ours, but they just put in a brand new one farther up past the waterfall on the Duval County side. They have an amount of time they're allowed to leave this temporary fix of just dirt and asphalt and then they have to come back and fix the slab, so I don't know how long that is. I have worked with the County to try to stay on top of them because we have multiple spots where our sidewalk is gone. I say our sidewalk, but it's really the County's sidewalk.
 - Mr. Thomas stated but it's our grass that we've put down and maintained.
- Mr. Soriano stated that's where it's hard. I can get on them because they're supposed to return it to the condition it was.
 - Ms. Suchsland stated I have talked to them. They're replacing with St. Augustine.
- Mr. Soriano stated that was our biggest issue with the one on Plantation Oaks side. They came in and threw seed and most of that seed was not St. Augustine grass.
 - Mr. Horton asked how about the historical marker. Is that still on hold?
 - Mr. Soriano responded I've heard nothing new from the County.
 - Mr. Horton asked we changed one of the pools from chlorine to salt, right?
- Mr. Soriano responded no. We have all the equipment, but I was going to do it in the off-season, and I can't do that until we fix the leak. We can finish the other two and they will be ready to go. If I have to stay with Poolsure for this next year, the one nice thing is since

we're putting in so much fresh water with this leak, I can throw a lot of chlorine at it because we don't pay extra for chlorine with Poolsure. We pay a flat monthly rate no matter how much we use. Once I get rid of them, we will spend a lot of money throwing salt in there if we have to constantly refill with water.

Mr. Horton asked any advantage to stopping it by turning some pumps off, or is it just leaking?

Mr. Soriano responded we're pretty positive that it's not in the other pipe. We dug everything back up and inspected it and there wasn't anything there, however, it's the slide, so when I turn the slide on. The slide has its own dedicated system. There are eight-inch openings and a 10-inch pipe on the water side, and then it goes back to where it goes into a 15-horsepower pump and that is a 12-inch opening back there, so that big pipe runs along that pond bank. Then it sends the water back and up the slide. That pipe could very well be a problem, but we would only notice it when it's on and that slide has been off now for two weeks. Even when it's off now we can see a leak, so I think it's in the other pipe. My concern is, we can't dig up the whole pond bank. I have to have somebody come in and sound it out and tell me where the crack is.

Mr. Horton stated I did a walk around up here the other day and I noticed quite a few things. I told you I would bring it up today, but going down the list, the middle bridge is all gooped up with something and a lot of the lamps need to be painted.

Mr. Soriano stated I haven't gotten to painting. They are updating the fiberglass and the faux iron designs on them. I told them while they're out working on the bridges they can, but they did double check all the lights and clean that one off. There was a lot of mud and insects. I don't know why they like that one light, but the light worked. They inspected all the rest and all of them are working.

Mr. Horton asked you checked all the lights around the soccer field?

Mr. Soriano responded yes. While they're out there working on that, I had already gone through some with you like the fountain. The day you came and talked to me, the fountain was already cleaned the week before, but it was easy because I could just take that list to them, and they could check it off while they were working on the bridge. Everything except for the items I can't deal with like the pool and the water level being low. Those are bigger projects, but everything else they were able to handle.

Mr. Horton stated let me just go through it really quick. The gym door needs repaired because it sticks and it's hard to open.

Mr. Soriano stated they lubed it up, but I think we need a new handle on that. We used to have that door locked down, so you have to scan in and there was an intercom on the brick wall. Because of that, most people would just yank on that door, and it damaged it over time. We don't do that at all now. When it's open, the door is open, and you have to scan in on the inside.

Mr. Horton stated some of the screens around the basketball and tennis courts need to be fixed.

Mr. Soriano stated I believe they went and zip tied them, but I'll double check. When it gets windy it rips the zip ties and that's what we want. We don't want it to stay up during windstorms because it damages the fence, so the zip ties are meant to break.

Mr. Horton stated I mentioned the storage shed over by the basketball courts. Putting a screen material on the fence there would look a lot better.

Mr. Soriano stated I can order those. Those are custom cut. The same screens we put on the pool is what we order. They come standard at 50-feet. Anything less than that we have to order in a custom size.

Mr. Horton stated the phone in the gym needs to be replaced. In talking to the ladies in there, they seemed to think a wireless phone would be nicer.

Mr. Soriano stated I just gave them a working corded phone for now.

Mr. Horton asked what about the camera in there?

Mr. Soriano responded no. That one is not up to me. I'll continue to push them, but they like the point and click camera, not the web cameras, so I'm going to have to force them to do something they don't like. I prefer the web camera. It's only at times like this where the point and click doesn't work because it's getting older that they complain about it. The rest of the time, they like that little camera that they can take a picture of you and then they transfer it to the computer. That's what they have used now for 13 years.

Mr. Horton asked do we have employees now to take care of all the work we've got?

Mr. Soriano responded I think so. We're at the point of what I asked for in our last budget. Up until last year we've never matched those budget lines, we've always been under a little bit. At this point I have three full-time guys and three part-time guys. That adds up to

about five and a half. You do split those guys with this district over here. That's twice as much as I've added any year that I've worked with you guys, and we've done a lot of work in the last couple of weeks. I think they've done a good job. People have asked about the increase in the assessments, but it paid for things like that and for the products that we bought tonight. That didn't start until October, so I didn't hire my first maintenance guy until the end of October. He has unfortunately already left me for a job at St. Vincents because they pay more. We have since replaced him and I got another in December. I think that's going to be enough to handle everything. I'd hate to push it beyond that, but I'd be happy to look for one more. I'd have to really coordinate how much work they do on your side and how much they do on the other side and keep that balance for your budget. I prefer not to go over any budget lines. I know we came close on a couple of things last year and we had one or two we went over.

Mr. Horton stated the longer we're here, the more maintenance that will be required so it's something we will have to look forward to.

Mr. Soriano stated I take that direction from you guys. If you want me to continue to look for more staff, I can. Staff is by far the most expensive part of our budget and that's the hard part. I still have to be able to balance that out. We have a lot more now, so I prefer to wait and see how it goes. If I have more resources and more people, that takes a little off my plate.

Mr. Horton stated it's our job to keep things in shape for the residents.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

Audience Comments / Supervisors' Requests

Audience Comments

Mr. Raul Mireles, 3165 Wandering Oaks Drive, stated you guys were talking about the cable company. Are you guys working on rectifying the sidewalk and landscape damage on the main drag?

Mr. Thomas responded I drive it every day and I've been on him every day about it.

Mr. Soriano stated we're limited. I can do everything I can to yell at the County, but it's not in our control. It's county-owned right of way. They own the sidewalk and the roads. They're always quick to tell us they're going to put it back the way it was, but it doesn't always work out like that.

Mr. Thomas stated Ms. Suchsland has been taking pictures of all the damage, so she is very well versed in what it used to look like, and what we're hoping it will look like.

Mr. Lanier stated unfortunately I think there is some leeway that they don't have to have it done until this job is completed.

Mr. Raul Mireles stated this probably doesn't fall on the CDD, but has anybody been talking about the road deprivation between the heavy trucks coming from the new neighborhoods they're building?

Chairperson Nelsen stated everyone needs to report issues to the County. They're County roads.

Mr. Horton stated I would think we would need to wait until they build most of those houses out down there.

Mr. Raul Mireles stated they're not doing much anymore.

Mr. Thomas stated there's approximately eight houses and about four are done.

Mr. Lanier stated the more residents call, the more results we're going to get from the County.

Mr. Thomas stated for example, a lot of residents are calling about trying to get a fourway stop there, so the more people that call, the better off.

Mr. Horton stated and contact our County Commissioner. I'm not sure who that is now.

Mr. Soriano stated Alexandra.

Mr. Raul Mireles stated the last thing I have is we love going to the pool, but we've noticed some decline in the appearance of the landscaping like the bush maintenance. It seems really overgrown. Also, when we're walking in the neighborhood at one time they would stop while people were walking by or even driving by, but now it seems like they're oblivious to anything around them and I'm not seeing as good of a job on the hedging in the neighborhoods. The neighborhood just doesn't seem as well maintained on the landscaping side as it once was.

Mr. Horton asked any particular neighborhood?

Mr. Raul Mireles stated I live in Nature's Hammock, so when we walk down Nature's Hammock, right there by the ponds. That sidewalk right there, the hedging isn't what it used to be, and definitely in the Phase 1 pool area the landscaping is not what it once was.

Mr. Horton stated we will let our landscapers know about that. You might want to talk to her after the meeting.

Mr. Stephen Fagan, 646 Wakeview Drive, stated I just wanted to thank you all for the time you're spending. In particular, the 4:00 meetings always seem to conflict, so we can't seem to get to them on time. We talked about pickleball, \$18,000, AT&T another \$2,000, playground one \$10,000, playground two \$30,000, fitness center painting \$10,000, furniture \$7,000 and pool furniture about another \$5,000. So, we're talking about \$80,000 worth of maintenance and upkeep, but we haven't seen anything about landscaping and grounds replenishing and replacing. As the gentleman said earlier, this Phase 1 side is kind of looking dead. I have some pictures I can share with you. *Mr. Fagan shared his pictures with the Board at this time.* A first impression is a lasting impression. If you look on there, you'll see a lot of ornamental grasses such as the jasmine are dying. You go around the soccer fields, the hedge rows are in decline. I'm not sure if there is a replenishment program, but that needs to be a part of the budget as well, because if not, the community is going to go downhill. The first thing you see is the landscaping and it's going to dictate how you feel about the property.

Mr. Horton stated plant replacements should be in the budget.

Mr. Soriano stated some; not replacing everything. We used our replacements well for the last couple of years. I don't like to replace grasses. I think it looks like a campground. That's not manicured stuff. I do like hedges, azaleas, and things like that. They cost a little bit more. The grasses also have limited time, so some of the ones people complain about that are fuller but still look a little rough are at their point of dying. They might live 20-30 years. If you wanted grasses, we would plant probably about now, but that's not one of the things we have set up in our replacements in the contract. We do have a contract that has a large number of replacements for one-gallon plants, three-gallon plants and perennials, but you're not talking about replacing everything. If we do that, you're going to see a very large increase in landscaping. Our landscaping budget is very low. We are going to be coming up on an RFP this year. Next month I'll present a timeline for that RFP so we can include the final numbers in the budget.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated when you let this stuff snowball, this is what you have. You have to replace a little bit every year or it snowballs into a monster and right now we have a monster on our hands. If you look around some of these light poles at night, it looks sad. That's not the community we moved into 20 years ago. It was vibrant and the landscaping was immaculate. You have these landscaping lights around the large oak trees that don't work.

Mr. Soriano stated that was one of the items I went over with Tom about a week ago.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated I drove in last night and two of them right in front of the swimming pool area and two by the fitness center were not working. Then you look along some of these drives and some of them have been vandalized. Remove them if they're not going to be replaced.

Mr. Soriano stated I'll take a look at it. If they're vandalized, we replace them, but they're also going to be vandalized again and we're going to continue to replace it. If you noticed, we started replacing the ones that are on the street side years ago with concrete lights for that reason because kids like to kick them.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated they're not even on. Someone has to look at these at night to make sure they're on. The ones leading to Whitfield aren't on. Again, some of the landscaping around those looks like it could use some attention. I heard about the ducks. We can't harass them as people, but I work at UNF, and we use Goose Masters. They bring dogs out. That may be an option to look at. When you have a trapper, you'll have to trap them year after year. People walk around with dogs all the time.

Mr. Soriano stated we use Goose Masters in some neighborhoods and they're \$4,000 to \$7,000 for a treatment.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated the ducks begin to learn, that's not the place you want to lay. We use them quite a bit on campus, to the point it's been so successful that we have cardboard dogs on campus. The ducks stay away from it.

Mr. Lanier stated we can take a look at a lot of this stuff. I get what you're saying. Some of this stuff I know is there, especially around the field house. I was with soccer for many years, and it is amazing to watch everybody just trample through it. I'm not opposed to a lot of what you're saying though, but this stuff right here is because people walked right through it.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated you can't put stuff up there that's ornamental that's going to get walked through and then it looks bad.

Mr. Lanier stated I just need a little understanding that we will take a look at this, but you have to realize this comes into a budget and if you want your CDD fees to increase, then we can do whatever you want.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated I don't have an issue with that if it's going to make my community look better. If you want something to look nice, you're going to have to pay more. You pay for what you get, and right now it looks bad.

Mr. Lanier stated your neighbors are going to have a big problem with it. That's something we will always take into consideration.

Mr. Horton asked what's the worst area that you're looking at? We can't do it all at one time. Where should we start?

Mr. Stephen Fagan responded I would think the major thoroughfares, because like I said, your first impression is a lasting impression. When you have light poles with 10 ornamental grasses around it and right next to it you have one and a half, that looks bad.

Mr. Thomas stated maybe we can come up with a plan of attack, like areas we would like to see address first. I would be really hesitant to do the field house parking lot because they're just going to get trampled, but looking at some way to redirect that traffic to not go through those areas is something I'd be willing to do. I agree the thorough fares and what we see on a day-to-day basis when we're out on our walks, absolutely.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated lastly, I'd like to say, we talked about the painters. Is there an agreement to hold these guys to their responsibilities, or are we just saying, come and paint. If they don't meet their expectations, there has to be some repercussions in the form of liquidated damages.

Mr. Eckert stated it depends on the size of the contract. I prepare contracts for the District all the time, but they're not going to call me to do a \$500 contract. It doesn't make sense from a financial perspective for them to pay an attorney \$500 to do a \$500 contract.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated these contractors are getting \$2,800. You hold his check, or there are repercussions.

Mr. Eckert stated we have to follow the Florida Prompt Payment Act, just like any other local government does and if we get an invoice where they didn't do the work, or they didn't do it right, we would withhold payment until it's done and we follow the notice provisions, so that's what we would need to do.

Mr. Stephen Fagan stated I will be at future meetings, even if I have to take off.

Mr. Horton stated Jay, you can work with Chalon and Chalon can walk around and make some suggestions. He has a point. My wife was pointing it out last time that some of the landscaping looks a little tired.

Ms. Suchsland stated Jay and I have discussed that. You're going on 25 years, and some plants don't last 25 years, but in your defense, you can't do it all. In his defense, there are some areas we can start looking at and bring you guys in. You have done a lot, even over the years that I've been here, and I think we can do more, but it's not going to happen overnight.

Mr. Soriano stated I would add, this is all extra, so this is not in the contract. Like I said, we have an RFP coming up and that will change our budget this year, then if we have 10 proposals to do certain areas and each one is \$2,000 or \$3,000, you're still adding another \$30,000 on top of whatever we may go to with this next budget year.

Ms. Suchsland stated now you have to look at the expense of what the wild hogs have torn up. That's a lot of sod.

Mr. Soriano stated that is going to be a rather large repair.

Mr. Michael Stewart, 720 Bellshire Drive, I would agree with the two gentleman who made comments previously. The place does look kind of sad. The thing I'm concerned about is the volumes of litter. I just want to know if we're going to participate in the beautify project that is getting ready to be rolled out by the County. I don't want to spend a great deal of money, but it would at least get people involved in the community, so I have interest in seeing how we can turn that around. I don't know if our landscaping people pick that up or what we need to do, I just know we need to take action to change that. I've been here 20 years and I've seen the same changes, so I relate to what you're saying. I've recently retired, so I have a lot more time to walk around and look and I'm unhappy with a lot of stuff, so I'm doing some things in my part of the world. If you go up and down my road, you will see a difference.

Mr. Lanier asked have you had contact with the HOA as well? The beautification project is something they might be able to get involved with as well.

Mr. Michael Stewart stated you can talk with the volunteer division. They have a lot of great resources.

Mr. Horton stated we have somebody that goes around twice a week and picks up litter on the main roads.

Mr. Soriano stated just to forewarn you, he is 68 years old, and he is retiring soon. You'll see him going up and down the roads on the golf cart and that's all he does. After a couple of hours, he has bags and bags, and it will be out there again the next day. We did add a second guy to do part-time rounds to try to get through all of Oakleaf at least twice. The part-time guy ends up adding another two or three days on top of that. That's helped since a couple of years ago, but it's basically put it back to what it was five or six years ago. We will never eatch up to that.

Ms. Amanda Shedd stated you mentioned the nets on the basketball court. Was the backboard replaced as well?

Mr. Soriano responded no. We will put the backboard back up when we do the surface work on the tennis courts. We took that off for a reason and we may not put it back to the little kids' height. We changed that over here. We've had three broken over here on the short net because of kids hanging on it. That's also why our nets are ripped up.

Ms. Amanda Shedd asked is there a timeline for fixing the soap dispensers in the men's and women's bathroom?

Mr. Soriano responded we put in little hand soaps and that's all that stays there now. I know they disappear easy, but we replaced them four or five separate times last year. We asked soccer and I-9 to help with that. They're getting ripped off the walls. This is all vandalism. We do replace those plastic fixtures and then it just costs us again, so we've gone to just putting the soap dispensers in there and as part of the contracts for soccer and I-9, they're supposed to help with those kinds of things too. Whether they actually do enough on the weekend has been an argument.

Ms. Amanda Shedd asked so the money we collect from renting the fields wouldn't pay for that?

Mr. Soriano responded no. That's only a portion. We just did that to offset the thousands of dollars that the neighborhood pays to have those fields. It doesn't come anywhere near that extra use.

Ms. Amanda Shedd asked so if we're just using hand soap that is movable, I think it would look better if we could remove the old fixtures that are just hanging on the wall broken. Also, I was told the men's restroom doesn't have a privacy door.

Mr. Soriano stated that may be one of the newer ones. They have caused a lot of damage this year and last year.

Ms. Amanda Shedd asked are there going to be repairs for the rust on the benches? Some of them are two feet long and could really hurt someone going all the way around the field.

Mr. Soriano responded we have been replacing the tops of the benches and in some of our playgrounds we got the Therma-plastic tops, and we started going to wood. Unfortunately, they're outrageously expensive, quite a few thousand dollars.

Ms. Amanda Shedd stated I feel like you could at least try to file them down and paint them.

Mr. Soriano stated we have many times. We use a flex seal that looks like a rubbery type of paint on benches and tables.

Ms. Amanda Shedd stated just the general area around the field house is dirty and there is a lot of graffiti on the interior and exterior. It looks rough, including the soda machine. The water fountain is rusting as well, and the filter needs to be changed.

Mr. Soriano stated we replaced the filter about a week ago, however we used an off brand. If you look at the one down by the tennis courts, it allows us to reset that light, however that one does not allow you to use an off brand, so we're going to have to buy the brand name because it will keep that light on until we use that specific filter. The graffiti and things like that, we do come out and pressure wash, but as soon as we clean if that comes back up, we have to take the maintenance guys off of whatever they're doing and send them back. We don't have the ability to do it every day or every week.

Ms. Amanda Shedd stated you mentioned the purchase of the new lounge chairs for the pool. I feel like in some minutes in the past I've read that people were asking for umbrellas. Did you give any thought to that?

Mr. Soriano stated we've always had umbrellas. They go by the tables; we don't have them on the lounges. I don't know that we would ever do that just because of a liability concern. They're lower when they're by the lounges. Most people like the sun if they're in the lounges. We do have a lot of areas that have shade already. You guys probably have the least amount of umbrellas over there. We do replace those on a regular basis, but we haven't added extras.

Ms. Giles stated she sent an email since we started the meeting that is very helpful. It's got pictures of all of the items she brought up.

A resident stated we understand that we can't do everything at one time. You have to have a plan. This is not accusatory, and this is not criticism. This is constructive feedback and we're concerned about our property value and how our neighborhood looks. To say we can't do it all at one time is insulting our intelligence, because we know you can't. Think about inflation. People can barely buy eggs now. So, we understand that, but we do request that there is a plan put in place for things that we know are going to deteriorate. When you tell me that 20 to 30 years later, all the shrubbery has died, that lets me know there was not a plan in place. We can't go back and change the past, we can only work on the future. Don't ask what the community can do for you, ask what can do for the community. We're here. I too have stepped out of the work force and have more time and am willing to get with you to see how we can beautify. Maybe we can get with some neighborhood associations where we can walk around to some of these fields, because there should not be graffiti and has anybody thought about putting cameras up? I don't know what kind of expense that would be. Every time you talk about something it's dealing with our budget. Today was very informative. If a person was not business oriented, they could easily get lost in this meeting, because we don't have the documents that you guys are going over. I want to be a part of the community. I've seen it deteriorate and I don't want to see it deteriorate more. I'm not asking solely what you guys can do for us, we want to know what we can do to help you guys, because you do work very hard and I understand the operations manager is a hard position, because you're trying to please everybody and you only have so much in the budget. I commend anybody who is willing to sit on this board. I disagree with you about contracts. You have to hold people accountable. If you say your price is \$500, that's the price you set, therefore you are held accountable for what you say you're going to do, and you put it in writing. Nobody is going to go to court over \$500, so that means you have to get dependable contractors and you have to hold them accountable. If someone came into your home and fixed something and it did not last, you can't tell me you would not go after them to fix it. We understand things have deteriorated, we understand the work force is not the same after COVID, we understand inflation, and no one is saying going up \$100 a month on our fees, but maybe you might have to go up \$20 per household. It's not okay to say what we can't do. When it comes to that soccer field, it's not okay to say, we're not

going to plant anything else because people just walk through. We need to figure out what barrier we need to put up to keep the area looking nice. Thank you for listening. I'd be more than happy to give you my name and number and to do whatever we need to do, because this is our home and as we all are approaching retirement, who wants to be 70 and 80-years old in a neighborhood that you do not feel safe in, nor is it beautiful. You worked too hard.

A resident asked is there any chance that the sand could be changed to put down turf in the volleyball area?

Mr. Soriano stated I wouldn't change it, because there are lots of people that like sand and that use the court. All we can do is replenish the sand. If we wanted a different type of surface for volleyball, I don't know what you're looking for. You're talking about a whole other type of court. There's not really a mix between hard and soft.

The resident stated I didn't realize it was utilized that much.

Mr. Thomas stated maybe we can look at replenishing it. Is it taking the old sand out to put new sand in, or do you just mix it in?

Mr. Soriano responded we just add to it.

Mr. Thomas asked is it just too flat?

Mr. Soriano stated I think she's looking for something else. Do you want something else other than volleyball, or do you want a hard volleyball court?

The resident responded a different surface for the volleyball court other than sand.

A resident stated I see people on it, but it's really not a lot. I walk several times a day.

Supervisor Requests

Mr. Horton stated nobody is here from S3.

Mr. Soriano stated I don't think she realized the meeting was at 6:00 p.m. She was here earlier.

Mr. Horton asked are there any issues you're aware of?

Mr. Soriano responded they do have a lot of new guards, so they have people training, which is good. I'd rather them have enough people to go through so we're not left short.

Mr. Horton asked are they using the cart now?

Mr. Soriano responded they have one guard that does. The others aren't using it enough. We've asked them to use it on a regular basis.

Mr. Lanier stated thank you to the audience for your participation. It's always good to get people that want to have a stake in the community.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting

Ms. Giles stated the next scheduled meeting is March 13th at 4:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

Adjournment

DocuSigned by:

On MOTION by Chairperson Nelsen seconded by Mr. Thomas with all in favor the meeting was adjourned.

Docusigned by:

Marilu Glus

3B3269E1043B434

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Chad Savis

2FC4851CBD0D43C...

Chairman/Vice Chairman